
 

 
AGENDA 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
5000 CLARK AVENUE 

LAKEWOOD, CALIFORNIA 
 

March 24, 2015 
 
 
 
RECEPTION:  “Lakewood Celebrates . . .” 6:00 p.m. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 7:30 p.m. 
 
INVOCATION:  Deacon Ray Skupnik, St. Cyprian Catholic Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Lakewood High School Jr. ROTC 
 
ROLL CALL: Mayor Todd Rogers 
 Vice Mayor Jeff Wood 
 Council Member Steve Croft 
 Council Member Diane DuBois 
 Council Member Ron Piazza 
 
CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REORGANIZATION 
1. Administration of the Oath of Office to Council Members 
 
2. Election of the Mayor and Vice Mayor 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS: 
 
ROUTINE ITEMS: 
All items listed within this section of the agenda are considered to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion without separate discussion.  Any Member of Council may request an 
item be removed for individual discussion or further explanation.  All items removed shall be 
considered immediately following action on the remaining items. 
 
RI-1 Approval of Minutes of the Meetings held February 24, and March 10, 2015 
 
RI-2 Approval of Personnel Transactions 
 
RI-3 Approval of Registers of Demands 
 
RI-4 Approval of Report of Monthly Investment Transactions 
 
RI-5 Adoption of Program Supplement to Master Agreement with State for Federal Aid Projects for Del 

Amo Boulevard Paving (Downey Avenue to Clark Avenue), Resolution No. 2015-3 
 
RI-6 Approval of Installation of Disabled Person Parking on 212th Street, Resolution No. 2015-4; and at 

Dunrobin Avenue, Resolution No. 2015-5 
 



City Council Agenda 
March 24, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Any qualified individual with a disability that would exclude that individual from participating in or attending the above meeting should contact the City 
Clerk’s Office, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, CA, at 562/866-9771, ext. 2200; at least 48 hours prior to the above meeting to ensure that reasonable 

arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or other reasonable auxiliary aids or services may be provided. 
 

Copies of staff reports and other writings pertaining to this agenda are available for public review during regular business hours 
in the Office of the City Clerk, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, CA  90712 

ROUTINE ITEMS:  Continued 
RI-7 Ratification of Purchase of Play Sand for Boyar Park 
 
RI-8 Approval of Refunding of 2008 Photovoltaic System Lease 
 
RI-9 Adoption of Resolution No. 2015-6; Amending Resolution Establishing Compensation, Rules and 

Regulations for Part-time Employees 
 
RI-10 Approval of Gateway Cities Council of Governments Economic Development Administration 

Revolving Loan Fund Transfer 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
1.1 Introduction of Ordinance No. 2015-2; Amending a Precise Plan for 3014 South Street 
 
LEGISLATION: 
2.1 Adoption of Signature Resolutions 
 a. Resolution No. 2015-7; Authorizing the City Treasurer to Deposit Funds for Safekeeping and 

Investment and Authorizing the Withdrawal of Funds from Depositories 
 
 b. Resolution No. 2015-8; Authorizing the Use of the Facsimile Signature of the Mayor in the 

Execution of Public Securities and Instruments of Payment 
 
 c. Resolution No. 2015-9; Authorizing the Use of the Facsimile Signature of the Vice Mayor in the 

Execution of Public Securities and Instruments of Payment 
 
REPORTS: 
3.1 Volunteer Appreciation Month Activities 
 
 

AGENDA 
LAKEWOOD HOUSING SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

1.  Approval of Register of Demands 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Minutes 
Lakewood City Council 

Regular Meeting held 
February 24, 2015 

  
 
MEETING WAS CALLED TO ORDER at 7:30 p.m. by Mayor Rogers in the Council Chambers at 
the Civic Center, 5000 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, California. 
 
INVOCATION was offered by Pastor Darrin McWatters, First Baptist Church of Lakewood 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE was led by Lakewood High School Jr. ROTC 
 
ROLL CALL:  PRESENT: Mayor Todd Rogers 
 Vice Mayor Jeff Wood 
 Council Member Steve Croft 
 Council Member Diane DuBois 
 Council Member Ron Piazza 
 

. . . 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS: 
Mayor Rogers announced that the meeting would be adjourned in memory of Julio Fajardo, 
father-in-law of Council Member Steve Croft; in memory of Jeff Dean, a 24-year employee, 
who retired in 2012, and passed away after battling cancer; and in memory of Jackson May, a 
Lakewood resident, who participated in the Meals on Wheels and Nifty After Fifty programs, 
and father of longtime employee, Nicole Duran. 
 
Vice Mayor Wood expressed gratitude to the organizers of the 34th Annual Youth Hall of 
Fame and congratulated the athletes who had been recognized at the event. 
 

. . . 
 
ROUTINE ITEMS: 
COUNCIL MEMBER DUBOIS MOVED AND VICE MAYOR WOOD SECONDED TO 
APPROVE ROUTINE ITEMS 1 THROUGH 4 AND 7 THROUGH 10. 
 
RI-1 Approval of Minutes of the Meetings held February 10, 2015 
 
RI-2 Approval of Personnel Transactions 
 
RI-3 Approval of Registers of Demands 
 
RI-4 Approval of Monthly Report of Investment Transactions 
 



City Council Minutes 
February 24, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
ROUTINE ITEMS:  Continued 
RI-7 RESOLUTION NO. 2015-1;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LAKEWOOD ADOPTING THE 2015 EDITION OF THE STANDARD 
SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION 

 
RI-8 Approval of Gas Company Consent to Common Use – Shared Easement for 72-Unit 

Condominium Development, 3014 South Street 
 
RI-9 Approval of Amendments to Reimbursement Agreement for Long Beach Transit 

Fixed Route and Dial-A-Lift Services 
 
RI-10 RESOLUTION NO. 2015-2;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LAKEWOOD ADDING A JOB CLASSIFICATION AND AMENDING 
EXISTING PAY RATE IN ATTACHMENT B OF RESOLUTION NO. 2014-27 

 
UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  Croft, DuBois, Wood, Piazza and Rogers 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 
RI-5 Approval of Agreement for Additional Aircraft Refurbishment Services – Lakewood 

Veterans Memorial Plaza 
 
Council Member Croft stated that since the presentation on the memorial at the previous 
Council meeting, changes had occurred as a result of the re-design process and that staff had 
done an excellent job in identifying the issues and mitigating some of the costs.  He observed 
that the latest update was proof that the memorial project was moving forward. 
 
Mayor Rogers concurred that although there had been issues that could not be anticipated, the 
additional services provided an opportunity to maintain a world class veterans memorial for 
future generations.  He added that it was also a way to pay homage to those who paid the 
ultimate sacrifice for the community and for their country. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER DUBOIS MOVED AND COUNCIL MEMBER PIAZZA 
SECONDED TO APPROVE ROUTINE ITEM 5.  UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE 
MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  Croft, DuBois, Wood, Piazza and Rogers 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 
RI-6 Approval of Agreement for Consulting Services and Expenses – Lakewood Veterans 

Memorial Plaza 
 



City Council Minutes 
February 24, 2015 
Page 3 
 
 
ROUTINE ITEMS:  Continued 
COUNCIL MEMBER CROFT MOVED AND COUNCIL MEMBER DUBOIS 
SECONDED TO APPROVE ROUTINE ITEM 6.  UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE 
MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  Croft, DuBois, Wood, Piazza and Rogers 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 
RI-11 Approval of Nomination to Fill a Vacancy on the Workforce Investment Board 

(WIB) 
 
Vice Mayor Wood introduced Allison Castellanos, nominee for the business sector 
representative to the WIB.  Ms. Castellanos expressed gratitude on her nomination and 
conveyed her eagerness for the opportunity to serve on the Board. 
 
VICE MAYOR WOOD MOVED AND COUNCIL MEMBER PIAZZA SECONDED TO 
APPROVE ROUTINE ITEM 11.  UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE MOTION WAS 
APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  Croft, DuBois, Wood, Piazza and Rogers 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 
 

. . . 
 
1.1 • SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2015-1; 
AMENDING THE LAKEWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO SPEED 
LIMITS ON CANDLEWOOD STREET, COVER STREET, DOWNEY AVENUE, 
LAKEWOOD BOULEVARD AND 215TH STREET 
City Attorney Steve Skolnik advised that the proposed ordinance had been introduced at the 
last meeting and following a brief report by the Public Works Director, a public hearing 
would be held. 
 
Lisa Rapp, Director of Public Works, reviewed that State law required traffic studies every 
five years to allow the use of radar for enforcement purposes.  After the Council approval of 
the Traffic and Engineering study at its last meeting, adoption of the proposed ordinance 
would complete the process. 
 
Mayor Rogers opened the public hearing at 7:44 p.m. and called for anyone in the audience 
wishing to address the City Council on this matter.  There was no response. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER DUBOIS MOVED AND VICE MAYOR WOOD SECONDED TO 
CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING.  UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE MOTION WAS 
APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  Croft, DuBois, Wood, Piazza and Rogers 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 



City Council Minutes 
February 24, 2015 
Page 4 
 
 
1.1 • ORDINANCE NO. 2015-1; AMENDING THE LAKEWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE 
PERTAINING TO SPEED LIMITS ON CANDLEWOOD STREET, COVER STREET, 
DOWNEY AVENUE, LAKEWOOD BOULEVARD AND 215TH STREET - Continued 
ORDINANCE NO. 2015-1;  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LAKEWOOD AMENDING THE LAKEWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING 
TO THE PRIMA FACIE SPEED LIMIT ON CANDLEWOOD STREET, COVER STREET, 
DOWNEY AVENUE, LAKEWOOD BOULEVARD AND 215TH STREET was read by 
title by the City Clerk. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER CROFT MOVED AND VICE MAYOR WOOD SECONDED TO 
WAIVE FURTHER READING AND ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 2015-1.  UPON ROLL 
CALL VOTE, THE MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  Croft, DuBois, Wood, Piazza and Rogers 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 

. . . 
 
3.1 • PREVIEW OF 2015 EARTH WALK EVENT 
Recreation and Community Services Director Lisa Litzinger displayed slides, showed a brief 
video and presented a report based on the memo in the agenda.  She reported that 
Lakewood’s free Earth Walk event would be held at Monte Verde Park on Saturday, 
March 14th.  She stated that the family-friendly event provided opportunities to learn about 
the environment, with hands-on participation activities and vendor displays pertaining to 
gardening, recycling and conservation from City departments, community groups and local 
businesses. 
 
Council Member DuBois stated that the joint efforts of the departments involved provided for 
an affordable and enjoyable event. 
 
MAYOR ROGERS STATED THAT THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, THE ITEM WAS 
ORDERED RECEIVED AND FILED. 
 

. . . 
 
3.2 • PREVIEW OF 2015 LAKEWOOD COMMUNITY RUN 
Director of Community Development, Sonia Southwell, displayed slides and described some 
of the features of the Lakewood Community Run, scheduled for Saturday, March 14th.  She 
stated that the fundraising event, which was organized by the Lakewood Sheriff’s Station and 
the Soroptimist of Lakewood/Long Beach, and sponsored by the City of Lakewood, County 
of Los Angeles and the Lakewood Center Mall, offered a fun day for everyone from 
beginners to avid runners. 
 
Council Member Croft encouraged people to attend the day’s various events stating that in 
addition to the Earth Walk and Community Run, a groundwater festival would also be taking 
place. 
 



City Council Minutes 
February 24, 2015 
Page 5 
 
 
3.2 • PREVIEW OF 2015 LAKEWOOD COMMUNITY RUN - Continued 
MAYOR ROGERS STATED THAT THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, THE ITEM WAS 
ORDERED RECEIVED AND FILED. 
 

. . . 
 
3.3 • REPORT ON LAKEWOOD VETERANS MEMORIAL PLAZA ENGRAVED 
BRICK PROGRAM 
The Public Works Director displayed slides and presented an update to the Veterans 
Memorial Plaza and Engraved Brick Program.  She reported on the progress of the jet 
restoration which included the repair of the tail section, restoration of the wings, and 
installation of electrical wiring.  She provided an update of the plaza construction including 
installation of the construction fence, playground equipment removal and demolition of the 
existing hardscape.  Ms. Rapp explained that the engraved brick program had made an 
excellent start and that additional public outreach efforts had been planned. 
 
Council Member Croft stated that with the memorial project underway, he encouraged the 
community to enjoy the City’s many other playgrounds and park sites. 
 
Vice Mayor Wood emphasized the historic aspect of the memorial jet noting that not only 
was it being restored and repaired but that it was being preserved as well. 
 
Council Member Piazza commended staff and described the project as a “movie in the 
making.” 
 
 
MAYOR ROGERS STATED THAT THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, THE ITEM WAS 
ORDERED RECEIVED AND FILED. 
 

. . . 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:  None 
 

. . . 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to be brought before the City Council, Mayor Rogers 
adjourned the meeting at 8:25 p.m.  A moment of silence was observed in memory of Julio 
Fajardo, Jeff Dean and Jackson May. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Jo Mayberry, CMC 
City Clerk 













































































































































































































 









































































ORDINANCE NO. 2015-2 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD 
MODIFYING THE PRECISE PLAN FOR THAT PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
3014 SOUTH STREET. 

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. On June 25, 2014, the City Council of the City of Lakewood adopted 
Ordinance No. 2013-1 thereby approving Zone Change No. 112, which changed the official 
zoning from M-F-R (Multiple Family Residential) to PD-MF (Multiple-Family Dwelling Unit 
Planned Development) for the property located at 3014 South Street, Lakewood, California.  
Ordinance No. 2013-1 and which included Exhibits “P and “Q” which established a wall height 
of 36” within the required front yard. 
 
 SECTION 2. The proposed Modification of Precise Plan allows fences, gates and walls 
within the required front yard to be not more than seven feet in height as measured from the 
public sidewalk. 
 
 SECTION 2. The Modification of Precise Plan was made pursuant to Section 9474 of 
the Lakewood Municipal Code.  
 
 SECTION 3. Pursuant to the terms and provisions of the California Environmental 
Quality Act Guidelines and Resolution No. 73-29 and the City’s environmental clearance 
procedures, the proposed project was found to be Categorically Exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) based on Section 15303.(e) of the CEQA Guidelines of 
1970, as amended.  Section 15303.(e) exempts certain accessory structures, including fences and 
walls. 
 

SECTION 5. The aforementioned Modification of Precise Plan has been adopted 
pursuant to a public hearing held before the City Council on the 24th day of March, 2015 
following published, posted, and mailed notice in accordance with the Government Code and 
local ordinances. 
 

SECTION 6. The Modification of Precise Plan as set forth in Exhibits “AA” and “BB” 
are hereby approved. 
 

SECTION 7. No person shall violate any provision, or fail to comply with any of the 
requirements of this Ordinance.  Any person violating any of the provisions, or failing to comply 
with any of the mandatory requirements of this Ordinance shall be guilty of a misdemeanor.  
Any person convicted of a misdemeanor under the provisions of this Ordinance shall be punished 
by a fine equal to the maximum amount allowed under state law, or by imprisonment in the City 



Ordinance No. 2015-2 
Page 2 
 
 
or County Jail for a period not exceeding six months, or by both fine and imprisonment.  Each 
such person shall be guilty of a separate offense for each and every day during any portion of 
which any violation of any provisions of this Ordinance is committed, continued, or permitted by 
such person, and shall be punished accordingly. 

 
In addition to the penalties hereinabove provided, any condition caused or permitted 

to exist in violation of any provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed a public nuisance, and 
may be by this City summarily abated as such, and each day such condition continues shall be 
regarded as a new and separate offense. 
 

SECTION 8. The City Council hereby declares it would have passed this Ordinance 
sentence by sentence, paragraph by paragraph, and section by section, and does hereby declare 
the provisions of this Ordinance are severable and, if, for any reason, any section of this 
Ordinance should be held invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
parts of this Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 9. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this ordinance.  The City 

Council hereby finds and determines there are no newspapers of general circulation both 
published and circulated within the City, and incompliance with Section 36933 of the 
Government Code, directs the City Clerk to cause said ordinance within fifteen (15) days after its 
passage to be posted in at least three public places within the City.  This ordinance shall take 
effect thirty (30) days after its adoption. 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED this ____ day of ___________, 2015, by the following roll call 
vote: 
 
  AYES  NAYS ABSENT 
Council Member Croft       
Council Member DuBois       
Council Member Piazza       
Council Member Wood       
Mayor Rogers       
 
 
 
             
       Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
City Clerk 





 





















 









 

 






